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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Manchester, Tennessee {the City) we offer readers of the City’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013. The analysis focuses on significant financial position, budget changes and
variances from the budget, and specific issues related to funds and the economic factors affecting the

City.

Financial Highlights:

The assets of the City of Manchester exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent year
by 533,757,438, Of this amount, $10,330,685 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The Recreation Center received a Diabetes grant from the Department of Health in the amount
of $10,000 for the Community Garden at Manchester Public Housing.

The Recreation Center also received a Discretionary Grant from The Community Foundation of
Middle Tennessee in the amount of $5,000. This grant was used with the Diabetes Grant to
create a Community Garden in Manchester Public Housing Authority with residents and area
school children from Westwood 5chools.

The City of Manchester Police Department received funds from the National Association of Drug
Diversion Investigators, Inc in the amount of 55,000 for prescription drug abuse enforcement.
The City of Manchester Police Department also received a grant from the Governor’s Highway
Safety in the amount of $24,994.46 for the Impaired/Aggressive and Speeding Driver
Enforcement Program.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $10,425,777.

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued Statement 54: Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions. The implementation date for this standard is for periods
beginning after June 15, 2010, which means FYE June 30, 2011, Governmental accounting
standards now require the reporting of five classifications of fund balance: Non-Spendable,
Restricted, Committed, Assigned and Unassigned. The City's audited financial statement
addresses three categories: Non-spendable $265,797; Assigned $72,809; and Unassigned
$10,087,171. The Unassigned Fund Balance is available for spending at the government’s
discretion.



Overview of the Financial Statements:

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Manchester’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) government-
wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-wide financial statements — The Government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets and iabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods {e.g., uncollected tax and earned but unused vacation leave),

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-
type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Manchester include general government,
public works, public safety, state street aid, public welfare and recreation and schools. The business-
type activities of the City include Water and Sewer services.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 3 - 4 of this report.

Fund Financial statements — A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Manchester,
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting te ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are funds used to account for essentially the same functions

reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financiai statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, government fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources avaitable at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.



Because the focus of the governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may be better to understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financial decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains twelve individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the Generai Fund and General Purpose School Fund which are
considered to be major funds. Data for the other ten governmental funds are combined into a single,
ageregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements later in this report beginning on page 39.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the major governmental funds to demonstrate compliance with this
budget, as well as for the non-major funds.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 5 — 8 and 12 - 15 of this report.

Proprietary Funds — The City maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report
the same functions presented in the business-type activities in the governmental-wide financial
statements. The City uses an enterprise fund to account for its Water and Sewer operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for Water and Sewer
operations which is considered to be a major fund.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 9 - 11 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes

to the financial statements can be found on pages 16 - 34 of this report.

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major

governmental funds are presented immediately following the notes to financial statements. Combining
and individual fund statements and schedules can be found beginning on page 38 of this report.
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Financial Analysis of the Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City of Manchester, assets exceeded liabilities by $33,757,438 at the close of
this fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the City’s assets (67.18%]) reflects its investment in capital assets {e.g. land,
buildings, machinery, and equipment and infrastructure) less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital asseis to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liguidate these liabilities. '

City of Manchester’s Net Position

Governmental Activities Business type Activities
2013 2012 2013 2012

Current and other assets 17,391,650 516,951,796 514,852,588 514,890,667
Capital Assets 29,726,399 30,468,191 34,069,061 35,122,678
Total Assets 47,118,049 47,449,987 48,921,649 50,013,345
Long-term liabjlities outstanding 25,207,688 25,423,552 27,320,449 28,706,764
Other Liabilities 7,423,600 6,752,216 2,330,524 1,539,541
Total Liabilities 32,631,288 32,175,765 29,650,973 30,246,305
Net Position

Net Investment in Capitat Assets 6,332,915 6,541,137 16,344,711 16,634,102
Restricted 749,127 788,274

Unrestricted 7,404,719 7,944,808 2,925,966 3,132,838

Total net position

514,486,761

§15,274,218

519,270,677

$19,767,040

Changes in net position. Governmental activities decreased the City’s net position by $500,388.
Business-type activities net position decreased by $496,363.

The table below provides a summary of the City’s net assets broken down by governmental and

business-type activities.



City of Manchester's Changes in Net Position

Revenues

Program revenues

Charges for services
Cperating grants and contributions

Capital grants and contributions

General Revenues
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Other taxes

Other

Total revenues

General Government
City Judge
Mayor's Office
Finance Dept.
Police
Fire
Public Works
Sanitation
Planning/Zoning
Recreation
Education
General Gavernment
Contributicns

Interest on debt

Water & Sewer

‘Total axpenses

Change in Net
Position

Met Position, as previously reported

Restatement from priar year
tet Position, beg. Of year as restated

Net Position, end of year

Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities

2013 2012 2013 2012
42,698,297 42,716,152 45,282,592  $5,344,191
8,560,584 10,346,921
110,545 26,500 683,411
7,078,261 7,241,713
7,256,230 5,124,959
698,022 1,367,359
415,399 1,000,226 12,664 13,976
426,817,338 $27,823,830 55,295,256  $6,041,578
$10,000 % 9,500
439,328 390,013
340,845 345,896
2,925,922 2,600,753
1,957,024 1,984,557
1,555,996 1,444,025
981,947 459,132
270,837 266,751
1,940,942 2,031,738
14,982,913 14,640,267
1,135,755 1,122,206
126,800 132,611
1,049,418 1,068,931
5,791,619 5,425,232
$27,717,727 $26,996,379  $5,791,618 45,425,232
(900,388] 827,451 {496,364) 616,345
15,274,218 14,439,935 19,767,040 19,150,695
112,931 6,832
15,387,149 14,446,767 19,767,040 15,150,655
$14,486,761  $15,274,218 518,270,677 $19,767,040




Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities

Revenues

$12,000,000

$10,000,000

$8,000,000

$6,000,000

54,000,000
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D 2012

$2,000,000
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Expenditures — Governmental Activities

Expenditures

$16,000,000
$14,000,600
$12,000,000

510,000,000
58,000,000
$6,000,000
$4,000,000
$2,000,000

SO

= 2013
£2012

Significant variances in Governmental Activities revenues and expenditures from that of the prior year
were as follows:

o Property taxes and sales taxes increased by $1,967,818 giving the General Fund an overall
increase in revenue of $1,006,492.09,

o The overall expenditures increased by approximately $721,347.68. The increase is due to
inflation in supplies and equipment to be purchased and additional training for employees.

e Education expenditures increased by $342,646.14 as a result of a system-wide wiring upgrade
needed to meet state mandated standards for online assessments.

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities accounted for revenue of $5,295,255.36 which includes contributed capital.

vii



Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
relaied legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City of Manchester's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outfiows, and balances of spendabie resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reporied combined ending fund
balances of $10,425,777, a decrease of $233,845.62 in comparison with the prior year. Within the
governmental funds, $80,327 is nonspendable for Inventory and Prepaid Costs in the General Fund and
$25,517 in the School Cafeteria Fund. In the General Purpose School Fund, $72,809 is assigned for ESP
and We Care.

The general fund is the chief operation fund of the City of Manchester, Tennessee. Due to the
compliance of GASB 54, the general fund recognizes “unassigned” fund balance instead of “unreserved”
fund balance. Atthe end of this fiscal year, this amount is $3,275,903. As a measure of the general
fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare unassigned fund balance to total general fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents approximately 41.50% of total general fund
expenditures.

The City's general fund had a positive net change in Fund Balance of $421,025.
Proprietary funds

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted Net Assets at the end of the year for the Water and Sewer Fund amounted to
$2,925,965.91. This represents total Net Assets at June 30, 2013 of $19,270,676.61.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were as follows: changes to
revenues were as follows: General Fund — increase of $160,604; General Purpose School Fund — increase
of $180,251; School Federal and State Programs — the change was insignificant; changes to
appropriations of General Fund decrease 5114,703; General Purpose School Fund — increase $495,902;
School Federal and State Programs — the change was insignificant.

Specific Revenue increases for the General Fund and General Purpose School Fund were as follows:

viii



Long-term Debt

At the end of the current year, the City of Manchester had bonded debt outstanding of $51,542,833. Of
this amount, $1,660,695 is due in the next fiscal year.

City of Manchester’s Outstanding Debt

Governmental Businass-type

Activities Activities Total

Principal due in the next fiscal year S 573,571 1,087,124 1,660,695

The City of Manchester's combined total bonded debt increased in the amount of $7,091,609 during the
current fiscal year.

Additional information on the City of Manchester's debt can be found in the notes to the financial
statements section of this report.

Currently Known Factors Affecting Future Years

The unempioyment rate for the Coffee County at the end of the fiscal year was 8.2%. This compares to
the State’s average unemployment rate of 8.8% and the national average rate of 7.8%. Due to the
economic situation, the City used the conservative approach in the preparation of next year's budget.
Property tax collection and local option sales tax were increased slightly in an anticipation of a slow
economy.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Manchester, Tennessee’s
finances for ali those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed
to the Finance Director/Chief Financial Officer, 200 West Fort Street, Manchester, TN 37355,



Bran, Ruoron & KeLiey, PLLC

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Manchester, Tennessee

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Manchester, Tennessee, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management'’s Responsibility for the Financial Slatements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United Siates of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on cur audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards reguire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
staterments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinfon on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Basis for Adverse Opinion on Financial Statements as a Whole

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, we found a fundamental lack of internal control over capital assets,
particularly in relation fo the recording of assets acquired as donations from the United States Department of Defense
surplus programs. In addition, we found unrecorded bank accounts held by the police and fire departments, the
majority of activity in those funds being undecumented. We also found evidence that certain fundraisers were held in
the City's name, the proceeds of which were not able fo be identified in any deposits recorded in the City accounts.
These were also issues during a portion of the year ended June 30, 2013. In addition, inventory listings were found to
not be accurately stated during the current fiscal year.

300 South Jeflesson Street, Winehester, TN 87398« G31067.0611 o Fax 931.967.4754
www.hrkepa.com e info@brkepa.com

Members of American Instituie of Certilied Public Accountints, Tennessee Socicty ol CPA's, and Assocttion of Government Accountants



Adverse Opinion

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the "Basis for Adverse Cpinion on Financial
Statements as a Whole” paragraph, the financial statements referred to above do not present fairly the financial
position of the City of Manchester, Tennessee, as of June 30, 2013, or the changes in financial position or, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended.

Cther Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and analysis and the schedules of funding progress on pages i-x and 36 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that coliectively comprise
the City of Manchester, Tennessee’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and other supplementary
information section are presented for purposes of additionat analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.8, Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Auwdits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Frofit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

With the exception of the reporting worksheet, the other supplementary information section is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relate direcily to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and cther additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplementary information section, with
the exception of the reporting worksheet, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The introductory section and reporting worksheet have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Slandards, we have also issued our reports dated March 28, 2014, on our
consideration of the City of Manchester, Tennessee's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of iis
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of thase reports is to describe the scope of our testing of internal controt over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. These reports are an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering City of Manchester, Tennessee's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Bean, Rhoton and Kelley, PLLC
March 28, 2014



CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2013

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Inventories
Internal balances
Capital assets:
Non depreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Receivable from Duck River Utility District
Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Customer deposits
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total Liabilites

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOQURCES
Deferred revenue
Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investrment in capital assets
Restricted for: {Note 10)
Specific purposes
ESP
School food service
We Care
Unrestricted
Total net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

3

Primary Governmert

Governmental
Activities

Business - type

Activities

Total

$ 90931,830.78 § 3,64332743 § 13,575,218.21

7,122,367.10
105,844.38
84,925.16

5,042,410.18
24,683,988.34
0.00
146,623.00

775,809.37
93,376.73
(84,925.16)

444,150.86
33,624,869.98
10,425,000.00

0.00

7,898,176.47
199,221.11
0.00

5,486,601.05
58,308,858.32
10,425,000.00
146,623.00

47,118,048.95

48,921,649.21

96,03D,658.16

523,918.06 330,112.80 854,030.86
1,134,922,14 120,995.28 1,264,917.42
0.00 311,791.58 311,791.53
553,571.42 1,087,124.03 1,640,8695.45
25,207,688.15 27,320,448.96 52,528,137.11
27,420,089.77 298,179,472.60 56,599,572.37
5,211,188.00 471,500.00 5,682,688.00
5,211,188.09 471,500.00 5,6682,688.05
6,332,915.38 16,344,710.70 22,677,626.08
441,522.91 0.00 441,522.91
63,727.71 0.00 63,727.71,
234,795.13 0.00 234,795,138
9,081.08 0.00 9,081.08
7,404,718.88 2,925,965.91 10,330,684.79

$ 14,486,761.09 $ 19,270,676.61 $ 33,757,437.70
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2013

ASSETS
Cash
Receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts
Due from other funds
Prepaid costs
Inveniories
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accryed costs
Due to other funds
Deterred revenue

Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

General
Purpose Cther
General School Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Total
2,458,725.01 % 4,177,456.32 $ 3,29570945 $ 9,931,890.78
6,256,866.02 448,877.10 320,779.22 7.026,522.34
2,285.31 0.00 84,825.16 87,210.47
0.00 148,623.00 0.00 146,623.00
80,327.42 0.00 25,616.96 105,844,38
8,798,003.76 $ 4,772,956.42 $ 3,726,930.79 § 17,298,090.97
31485245 & 47,187.58 § 161,878.03 $ 523,918.08
136,620.09 B854,842.56 143,4538.49 1,134,922.14
0.00 2,285.31 0.00 2,285.31
4,990,500.59 0.00 220,687.50 5,211,188,09
5,441 873.13 904,315.45 526,025.02 6,872,313.60
B80,327.42 146,623.00 38,846.94 265,797.36
0.00 72,808,739 0.00 72,808.79
3,875,803.21 3,649,209.18 3,162,058.83 10,087,171.22
3,356,230.63 3,868,640.97 3,200,805.77 10,425,777.37
8,798,203.76 $ 4,772,956.42 § 3,726,930.79 § 17,298,090.97

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this sfatement.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2013

Amounts reported for fund balances - total governmental funds $ 10,425,777.37

Amounis reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different because:

Capital assets, net of depreciation, are not reported in this fund financial statement because
they are not current financial resources, but they are reported in the statement of net
position. 29,726,398.53

Certain liabilities are not reported in this fund financial statement because they are not due
and payable within one year, but they are presented in the statement of net position.
Bonds Payable - ($23,393,483.15)
Loss on Refunding - $95,844.76
OPERB Obligation - ($589,000.00)
Compensated Absences - {$1,778,776.42) (25,665,414.81)

_Net position of governmental activities $ 14,486,761.09

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
General
Purpose QOther Toial
General School Governmental Governmeantal
Fund Fund Funds Funds
BEVENLIES
Taxes $ 9,756431.82 & 3771,119.54 240,441.02 § 13,807,992.38
Licenses and permits 74,363.16 0.00 0.00 74,363.16
Fines and fees 224,395,328 0.00 0.00 224,395.38
Charges for services 24,530.48 160,405.90 2,297,465.38 2,482,401.76
Intergovernmental 1,517,086.89 6,472,014.36 1,698,392.24 9,687,493,49
Uses of money and property 0.00 4,288.56 47,1467 51,434.73
Miscellaneous 289,787.70 110,526.55 374,295.47 774,609.72
Tolal Revenue 11,826,5985.43 10,518,354.81 4,657,740.28 27,102,690.62
EXPENDITURES
Current:
City judge 10,000.06 0.00 0.00 10,000.06
Mayor's office 430,900.38 0.00 0.co 430,900.38
Finance department 321,673.35 0.00 0.00 321,6873.35
Police 2,755,715.63 0.00 0.00 2,755,715.63
Fire 1,888,075.70 0.00 0.00 1,888,075.70
Public works 1,335,161.99 0.00 0.00 1,335,161.89
Sanitation 0.00 0.00 962,916.33 962,916.33
Planning and zoning 269,648.13 0.00 0.00 269,648.13
Parks and recreation 0.00 0.00 1,669,450.84 1,669,450.84
Education:
Administration 0.00 1,896,540.38 0.00 1,896,540.38
Regular education 0.00 6,840,315.88 0.00 6,840,315.88
Special education 0.00 1,348,633.47 0.00 1,348,633.47
Attendance 0.00 94,978.52 0.00 94,976.52
Health services and other student support 0.00 276,888.57 0.00 276,888.57
instructional staff 0.00 489,7983.80 0.00 489,793.80
Plant operations 0.00 817,913.38 0.00 817,913.38
Plant maintenance 0.00 8996,344.03 0.00 996,344.03
Transporiation 0.00 39,987.20 0.00 39,987.90
Community services 0.00 206,768.81 0.00 2086,768.81
Program costs 0.00 0.00 2,133,708.10 2,133,708.10
General government 504,987.79 0.00 0.00 504,987.79
Contributions 126,800.06 0.00 0.00 126,800.06
Debt service 0.00 0.00 1,612,889.81 1,612,989.81
Capital outlay 251,168.41 0.00 168,098.13 419,266.54
Total Expenditures 7,894,131.50 13,008,172.74 6.547,163.21 27,449,467 .45
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 4,032,463.93 (2,489,817.83) {1,889,422.93) {346,776.83)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers from other funds 0.00 1,678,467.00 2,056,845.89 3,735,312.89
Operating transfers tc other funds (3,611,439.34) 0.00 (123,873.55) (3,735,312.89)
Total Other Financing Scurces {Uses) {3,611,435.34) 1,678,467.00 1,932,972.34 0.00
Net change in Fund Balance 421,024.59 (811,350.83) 43,549.41 (346,776.83)
Fund Balance, beginning of year, as previously reported 2,835,206.04 4,679,991.80 3,044,425.15 10,659,622.99
Restatement (Note 17) 0.00 0.00 112,931.21 112,831.21
Fund Balance, beginning of year, as restated 2,835,206.04 4,678,991.80 3,157,356.36 10,772,554.20

Fund Balance, ending $ 3,356,23063 $ 386864097 & 3,200905.77 § 10,425,777.37

The accempanying notes are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Amounts reported for fund balances - total gavernmental funds

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in this fund financial statement because they
use current financial rescurces, but they are presented as asseis in the statement of
activities and depreciated over their estimated economic lives. The amount by which capital
oullays are reported in the Governmental Funds is more than depreciation for the year.
Capitat outlays:  $1,023,387.90
Depreciation: ($1,509,828.51)

Governmental funds report the effects of bond issuance costs, premiums, discounts and
similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and ameortized
for governmental activities.

Amortization of bond related costs

Gains and losses are not presented in this financial statement because they do not provide
or use current financial resources, but they are presented in the statement of activities.

Payment of compensated absences is reported as expenditures in the governmental funds
when actually paid. However, on the government - wide statement of changes in net assels
compensated absences are expensed as they are accrued.

Change in the compensated absences liability

OPEB benefits cannot be used until the employee is no longer employed by the City,
therefore they are not paid in cash until a date that may extend well into the future.
Change in OPEB obligations

The issuance of long - term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
asseis,

Note principal retirement: §563,571.42

Change in net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of this statement.
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$

(346,776.83)

(486,440.61)

(7.682.81)

(285,352.27)

(202,707.13)

(135,000.00)

563,571.42

$

(900,388.23)




CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

June 30, 2013

ASSETS

Cash
Accounts receivable {net of allowances for uncollectibles)
Inventories
Capilal asseis:

Nondepreciable

Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Receivable from DRUC

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due io other funds
Customer deposits
Noncurrent liabilities
Bue within cne year
Bue in more than one year
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRBED INFL.OWS OF RESQLURCES
Deferred revenues
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net invesiment in capital assets
Unrestricled
TOTAL NET POSITION

Water and
Sewer

Fund Total
3,643,327.43 & 3,643,327.43
775,809.37 775,809.37
93,376.73 93,376.73
34,069,060.84 34,069,060.84
10,425,000.00 10,425,000.00
49 .006,574.37 49 006,574.37
330,112.80 330,112.80
388,218.13 388,218.13
84,925.16 84,925.16
311,791.53 311,791.53
1,087,124.03 1,087,124.03
27,062,226.11 27.062,226.11
29,264,397.76 29,264,397.76
471,500.00 471,500.00
471,500.00 471,500.00
16,344,710.70 16,344,710.70
2,925,965.91 2,925,865.91

19,270,676.61_§

19,270,676.51

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Operating Revenues:
Metered water sales
Sewer service charges
Other revenues from operations
Total Qperating Revenues:
Operating Expenses:
Water Distribution:
Water purchased
Utllities
Shop and Maintenance:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Utilities
Repair and maintenance
Operating supplies
Administration and General:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Services
Supplies
Insurance
Other
Sewer Treatment:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Services
Supplies
Mechanical Mainienance:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Supplies
Depreciation and Amartization
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss
Nonoperating Revenues {Expenses):
interest income
Other income
Interest expense
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Loss before capiial contributions
Capital contributions
Change in Fund Net Position

Net position, beginring
Net position, ending

Water and
Sewer
Fund Total
2,839,831.45 § 2.839,831.45
1,995 546.29 1,985 ,546.29
340,785.05 340,785.05
5,176,162.79 5,176,162.79
1,124,175.75 1,124 17575
75,930.47 75,930.47
856,567.05 856,567.05
372,333.35 372,333.35
8,860.86 6,860.86
£234,976.94 234,976.94
65,604.39 65,604.39
130,153.34 130,153.34
62,860.24 62,860.24
61,257.42 61,257.42
15,982.49 15,982.48
14,729.55 14,728,655
8,254.51 B,254.51
134,458.35 134,458.35
87,908.25 87,808.25
381,670.67 381,670.67
54,213.82 54,213.82
81,938.45 81,838.45
32,295.86 32,255.86
6,956.65 6,956.65
1,399,847 .11 1,399,847.11
5,208,975.52 5,208,975,52
(32,812.73) {32,812.73}
12,663.69 12,663.69
28,821.38 28,821.38
(582,643.46) (582,643.46)

(541,158.39)

(541,158.39)

(573,971.12)

77,607.50

(573,971.12)

77,607.50

(496,363.62)
198,767,040.23

(496,363.62)
19,767,040.23

19,270,676.61 &

19,270,676.61

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this staterment.



CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers

Cash paid to employees for services
Cash paid to suppliers of goods and services

Other receipts (payments)

Net Cash provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows frem Capital and Related Financing Activities

Acquisitions of capital assets
Interest paid on capital debt
Principal paid on capital debt

Net Cash {used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Invesiing Activities

interesi received on investments
Net Cash provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash
Cash, Beginning of Year
Cash, End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operations

Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided

by operating activites:

Depreciation

{Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable

increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Water and
Sewer
Fund Total
5,151,383.45 $ 5,151,393.45
{1,512,810.01} (1,512,810.01)
{(2,677,428.25) (2,677,428.25)
544,088.03 544 088,03
1,605,243.22 1,605,243.22

{137,185.66)
(582,643.46)
(764,226.08)

(137,185.66)
(582,643.46)
(764,226.08)

(1,484,055.20)

(1,484,055.20)

12,663.69 12,663.69
12,563.69 12,663,609
33,851.71 33,851.71
3,609,475.72 3,609,475.72
3,643,327.43 $  3,643,327.43
(32,812.73) 8 (32,812.73)
1,388,171.73 1,388,171.73
{12,037.52) (12,037.52)
161,921.74 161,921.74
1505,243.22 $ _ 1,505,243.22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance with

Final Budgs!
Budgetary Amounts Actual Positive
Criginal Amended Final Amaurits {Nagative)
Revenue
Taxes:
Real and personal property taxes $ 460852700 % 464452700 $§ 461217400 F 461554158 5 3,367.58
Penalty and interest 65,000.00 £5,000.00 §4,000.00 63,520.61 (479.39)
Local option sales tax 3,630,000,00 3,630,000.00 3,630,000.00 3,654,445.87 24,445 87
Beer tax 470,000.00 470,000.00 470,000.00 482,158.61 22,158.61
Wholesale liquer tax 185,000,00 195,000.08 215,000.00 229,668.36 14,668,386
Business tax 250,000.00 250,000.00 287,965.00 287 965,00 0.00
Motal tax 355,000.00 355,000.00 350,000.00 338,571.34 (13,428.68)
Cable TV 135,000.00 135,000.00 100,000.00 116,560.45 16,560.45
Total Taxes 9,708,627.00 8,744,627.00 9,729,138.00 9,796,431.82 67,282.82
Licenses and Permits:
Beer and liquor permits 15,000.00 17,000.00 17,.630.00 17,828.66 (0.34)
Building permits 45,000.00 45,000.00 56,5633.00 56,533.50 0.50
Total Licenses and Permits 60,000.00 62,000.00 74,363.00 74,3683.18 0.18
Fines and Fees:
Fees and cosis 217,000.00 217,000.00 224,395.00 224, 385,38 0.38
Total Fines and Fees 217,000.00 217,000.00 224,395.00 224,385.38 0.38
Charges for Services:
Other 20,000.00 15,500,000 24,528.00 24,530.48 2.48
Total Charge for Services 20,000.00 15,500.00 24,528.00 24,530.48 2.48
Intargovernmental:
Sales tax §50,00.00 650,000.00 660,000.00 699,173.20 39,173.20
State beer tax 5,000.00 5,000,00 4,884.00 4,984 47 0.47
State excise tax 45,000.00 45,000.00 58,427.00 58,427.73 0.73
State income tax 43,000.00 40,0C0.00 86,150,00 66,1689,12 19.12
Mixed drink tax 40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 42,530.85 2,530,85
Strests and transportation 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,700.00 20,688.66 (1.34)
Strest aid revenue 195,000.00 165,004.00 173,000.00 177,863.40 4,863.40
TVA payments in lieu of tax 116,500.00 116,500.00 115,231.00 115,231.78 0.78
Manchester Housing Authority 9,600.00 9,500.00 8,621.00 9,621.00 0.00
Allacation - state & local 83,000.00 83,000.00 81,000.00 215887 (3,784.13)
Federal and state grants 49,100.00 52,738.00 52,6156.00 57,616.02 5,001.09
State 3% gas tax 70,000.00 70,000.00 77,000.00 B2,144 62 5,144 62
Cofiee County Industrial Park 57,600.00 57,600.00 57,600.00 57,600.00 0.00
Other intergovernmental 178,025.00 62,600.00 62,000.00 37,800.00 (24,200.00)
Cofiea County appropriation to Fire Dapt. 10,000.C0 10,000.00 106,000.00 10,000.00 0.00
Total Intergovernmental 1,569,825,00 1,456,838.00 1,480,338.00 1,517.0B6.89 28,748.89
Miscellaneous income 93,050.00 284,115.00 288,243.00 288,787.70 1,544.70
Total Miscellaneous 93,050.00 284,115.00 2588,243.00 280,787,70 1,544.70
Total Revenues 11,668,402,00 11,780,080.00 11,828,006.00 11,926,595.43 97.589.43

{continued)
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND (continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgetary Amounts Actuat Paositive
QOriginal Amended Final Amourts {Negative)
Expenditures
City Judge:
Hetainer 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.06 ({0.06)
Total City Judge 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,080.06 {D.06)
Mayor's Office:
Personnel costs 2B84,394.00 274, 770,00 203,788.00 288,204.28 4,893,72
Contractual services 80,000.00 91,175.00 116,613.00 114,033,600 2,580.00
Supplies 17.300.00 23,250.00 23,560.00 20,204.31 3,3585.69
Total 381,684.00 389,195.00 433,971.00 423,441,859 10,529.41
Capital Outlay 0,00 0.00 0.00 7,450.79 (7.458.79)
Total Mayor's Office 3081,684.00 389,1585.00 433,871.00 430,80C.38 3,070.62
Finance Depariment:
Personnel costs 309,918.00 288,835.00 252,210.00 251,851.81 558.18
Contractual services 30,607.00 33,207.00 49,404.00 48,68086.82 797.18
Supplies 15,550.00 20,000.00 17,205.00 17,812.38 {607.3B)
Tota} 356,075.00 342,042.00 318,818.00 318,071.01 747.95
Capital Outiay 4,000.0C 5,000.00 3,650.00 3,602.34 47.66
Total Finance Bepartment 360,075.00 347,042,00 322,469.00 321,673.35 795.65
Public Safety
Police Department:
Persorinel costs 2,411,272.00 2,484,655.00 2,493,465.00 2,482,948.93 518.07
Contractusl services 167,733.00 178,333.00 184,508.00 176,072.96 8,435.04
Supplies 56,000.00 54,250.00 53,415.00 74,295.88 (20,880.88)
Total 2,635,005.00 2,727,238.00 2,731,388.00 2,743,315.77 {11,827.77)
Capital Outlay BB, 00X.00 77,000,00 76,775.00 71,003.84 5,771.06
Total Police Deparimeant 2,723,005.00 2,804,238.00 2,808,163.00 2,814,319,71 (6,156.71)
Fire Departimant:
Personnet costs 1,820,355.00 1,800.855.00 1,788,030.00 1,782,269.89 15,760.11
Contractual services 73,800.00 72,150.00 62,060.00 61,641.30 418.70
Supglies 26,645.00 23,245.00 21,763.00 44,164.51 (22,401.51)
Total Fire Department 1,820,800.00 1,896,250.00 1,681,853.00 1,888,075.70 {6,222.70)
Total Public Safety 4,643,005.00 4,700,488.00 4,690,016.00 4,702,395.41 (12,378.41)
Public Warks:
Personnel costs 891,933.00 895,833,00 907,108.00 803,653.12 3,454.88
Contractua! services 111,000.00 109,000.00 82,925.00 B2,287.00 638.00
Supplies 76,850.00 98,685.00 £7,135.00 101,538.17 {4,401.17)
State Street Aid Expenditures:
Straet lighting 200,000,00 200,000.00 198,000.C0 197,718.659 281.41
Strest paving 285,600.00 283,300,00 268,000.00 47,789.84 250,210.16
Total 1,665,183.00 1,593,818.00 1,583,168.00 1,332,884.72 250,183.28
Capital Cutlay 16,200.00 17,000.00 18,000.00 204,245.87 (186,245.87)
Total Highway and Streets 1,581,483.00 1,616,818.00 1,601,168.00 1,637,230.59 63,937.41
Flanning and Zecning:
Personnel costs 295,889.00 253,789.00 241,838.00 24t B00.08 138.892
Contractual services 7.500.00 7.500.00 6,650.00 6,561.65 88.35
Supplies 14,850.00 16,800.00 12,140.00 11,7B2,13 357.87
Tatal Planning and Zoning 318,238,00 278,189.00 260,729.00 260,143.86 5B5.14

(coniinued}
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND (continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Expenditures, Continued:
Geaneral Gavernment;
Personnel costs
Contractual services
Supplias
Insurance
Total Current
Cagital Qutiay
Total Generat Government

Contributions:
Current:
Coffea Caunty Conference Center
Coffee County Child Care
Coffea County Children's Advocacy Center
Library
Ceoffee County Senior Center
Manchester Senior Center
Sauth Central TN Development District
Sauth Central Human Rescurces
Keep Coffee County Beautiful
Tennessee Backroads Heritage
Leadership Class
Chamber of Commerce
Vacational Training Center
Total Corttributions

Tetal Expenditures

Excess of
revenuas over expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer to General Purpose School Fund
Transfer to Recreation Fund
Transfer to Sanitation Fund
Transfer to Community Service
Transfer to Cebt Service Fund
Totat Financing (Uses)

Excess {deficiency) ot
revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year
Fund Ralance, End of Year

Variance with
Final Budget
Budgetary Amounis Actual Positive
QOriginal Amended Final Amounts (Negative)

700.00 500.00 325,00 308.07 18,83
163,165.00 197,650.00 198,775.00 187.643.61 1,131.39
7,400,00 8,500.00 8,175.00 11,456.90 (3,281.90}
322,000.00 294,700.00 2080,355.00 2095,5681,21 (5.226.21)
483,265.00 502,350.00 487,630.00 504,987.79 (7,357.79)
141,825.00 4,300.00 10,200.00 0.00 10,200,00

635,090.00 506,650.00 507,830.00 504,987.79 2,842.21
B0,000.00 B80,000.00 68,500.00 68,063.06 436.84
2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,5600.00 0.00
6,500,00 6,500.00 6,500.C0 B,500.00 0.00
12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 0.00
2,600.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00
2,500,00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00
2,121.00 2,121.00 2.121.00 2,121.00 0.00
1,616.00 1,618.00 1,618.00 1,616.600 0.00
1,000,00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.C0 0.00
1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.C0 0.00
5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00
10,000.00 10,000.00 14,000,00 10,000.00 D.00
11,000.00 11,000.00 11,000.00 11,000.00 0.00
137,737.00 137,737.00 127,237.00 126,800.06 436,94
B,068,123.00 7,886,119.00 7,953,420.00 7.884,131.50 59,288.50
3,600,278.00 3,793,961,00 3,875,586.00 4,032,463.83 1586,877.93
{1,678,467.00) {1,678,487.00) {1,678,467.00) (1,678,467.00) 0.00
(431,545.00) (3686,750.00) {400,000.00) {400,000.08) {0.08)
(26,B56.00) (26,856.00) (26,856.00) {25,856.00) 0.00
(17,000.00) (17,000.00) {17.000.00) {17,000.00) 0.00
{1,445,815.00) {1,445,815.00) {1.445,915.00) (1,489,116.26) {43,201.26)
{3,599,783.00} (3,534,686.00) {3,568,23B.00) {3,611,430.34) {43,201.34)
496,00 258,973.00 307,348.00 421,024.58 113,676.58
2,835,206.04 2,835,206.04 2,835,206.04 2,835,206.04 0.00

5

293570204 §  3,184179.04 5

3242554.04 $

3,356,23068 &

113,676.59

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance with

Final Budgst
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Amended Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes:
Property tax $ 2,428,00000 & 242800000 § 242650000 $ 232742827 § {89,073.73)
Locat opticn sales tax 1,435,000.00 1,435,000.00 1,437,500,00 1,439,666.69 2,186.69
Other taxes 5,200.00 5,200.00 6,700.00 5,060.87 {1,639.13)
Total Taxes 3,868,200.00 3,868,200.00 3,870,700.00 3,772,173.83 (98,526.17)
tntergovernmental
Federal & State Education grants 6,547,147.00 6,547,147.00 6,736,756.00 6,524,097.95 {211,858.04)
Total intergovernmental 6,547,147.00 5,547,147.00 6,736,756.00 6,524,807.86 {211,85B.04)
Charges for Services:
Tuition and other 174,500.00 174,500.00 158,500.00 160,405,890 1,805.90
Miscellaneous:
Other incorne 19,780.00 19,750,00 23,882.00 50,877.22 36,985.22
Total Revenues 10,608,597.00 10,609,597.00 10,789,848.00 10,518,954.91 [271,483.09)
Expenditures:
Current:
Education:
Administration 2,278,228.00 2,278,228.00 2,268,033.00 2,281,901.02 6,131.08
Regular education G5,761,879.00 6,761,879.00 8,773,891.00 6,633,087.83 140,903.17
Special education 1,338,180.00 1,338,180.00 1,311,805.00 1,262,325.70 19,479,30
Aftendance 102,542.00 102,542.00 97,692.00 04,976.52 2,715.48
Heslth services and other students support 117,614.00 117,614.00 113,606.00 117,052.61 {3,356.81)
instructional staff 524,601.00 524,601.00 527.378.00 §27.804.94 (426.94)
Plant cperations 871,170.00 a71,170.00 838,985.00 817.813.38 21,07t.62
Plant maintenance 467,851.00 467,851.00 434 086,00 406,443.91 27,622.09
Transpariation 36,037.00 35,037.00 39,212.00 38,887.90 (785.80)
Capitai outlay 10,000,00 10,000.00 600,000.00 588,800.12 10,099.88
Community services 236,364,400 238,364.00 217,610.00 206,768.81 10,841.19
Total Expenditures 12,748,566.00 12,746,566,00 13,242,468.00 13,008,172.74 234,255.28
{Deficiency) of revenues over expendiiuras (2,136,969.00} {2,136,968.00) {2,452 620.00) (2,488,817.83) {37,197.83)
Cther Scurces (Lises} of Resources:
Operating transiers from General Fung 1,678,467.00 1,678,467.00 1,678,467.00 1,678,467.00 0.00
Operating transfers from Schoc! Capital Projects 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.0c {2,500.00)
Total Other Sources of Resources 1,680,967.00 1,680,967.00 1,6880,9687.00 1,678,467.00 {2,500.00)
Excess {deficiency} of revenues over
aexpenditures and other sources (uses) (456,002.00) {456,002.00) {771,653.00) {811,350.83) (39,697.83)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 4,679,991.80 4.679.891.80 4,678,991.80 4,678,951.80 0.00
Fund Balance, End of Year 5 4020308080 $ 422398880 § 390833880 & 3BERG4DS7 § {39,657.83)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Manchester, Tennessee was incorporated in 1905. The City operates under a Mayor-Alderman form of
government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety {police and fire
protection), public school system, highways and streets, health and social services, recreation, public improvements,
planning and zoning, general administrative services, and water and sewer services.

The accompanying financial statements are presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America for governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) and other authoritative sources.

Reporting Entity

The City follows the standards promulgated by GASE Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and GASB
Statement No. 39, Defermining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, to define the reporting entity.
The financial statements include all operations over which the City is financially accountable. The City has not
identified any éntities which would be component units.

Related Organizations

The City's officials are also responsible for appointing the members of the boards of other organizations, but the
City's accountability for these organizations do not extend beyond making the appointment.

The following organizations are related organizations which have not been included in the reporting entity.

Manchester Housing Authority - The Board and Director of the Authority are appoeinted by the Mayor and Aldermen,
but the City does not provide funding, has no obligation for the debt issued by the Authority, and cannot impose its
will upon the operations of the Authority.

Manchester Arts Commission - The Board and Director of the Commission are appointed by the Mayor and
Aldermen. The Arts Commission is a Tennessee Chartered Non Profit Corporation.  Further, the City has no
obligation for any debt issued by the Commissian, nor can it impose its will upon the operations of the Cornmission.

Joint Venture

The City, in conjunction with the City of Tullahoma, appoints the Board of the Duck River Utility Commission {(DRUC),
which operates a water treatment plant providing the citizens of the two cities with water, Each city elects three of
the six member board. Neither city has any other responsibility for the Commission. The City has no equity interest
in the net resources of the Commission. Assets of the Utility are pledged to the cities to secure indebtedness to the
State of Tennessee which is being repaid from earnings of the Utility. The Commission reported net position of
$2,621,780 and $2,599,982 in 2013 and 2012, respectively. Complete financial statements of the Utility are
available at the Finance Director’s office at City Hall.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (l.e., Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report
inforrnation on all of the City’s activities. The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function are offset by program revenues, Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Frogram revenues inciude 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2} grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requiremenis of a pariicular function. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported as general revenues. The effect of
interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial statements.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2013

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual proprietary funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes
are recegnized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have heen met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereatter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgmenis are recarded only when payment is due
in the governmental fund financial statements.

Property taxes, state shared revenues, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are ali considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period using the criteria
specified in the paragraph above. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received by the government.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. |t accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The General Purpose Schocl Fund is used to account for the primary aclivities of the schools of the City of
Manchester,

The government reporis the following major proprietary fund:
The Water & Sewer Fund accounts for the water and wastewater services provided to customers of the system.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City's enterprise fund are
charges to customers for water and sewer services. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund include the cost of
water and sewer services, adminisiralive expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are availlable for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2013

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actuaf results could differ from those estimates.

Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted
assets) with a maturity when purchased of three months or less and all local government investment pools to be
cash equivalents.

Capital Asseis

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastruciure assets consisting of certain
improvements other than buildings, including roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, and drainage systems are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the governmeni-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of three years. All fixed assets are valued at historical cost or
estimated historical cost, if actual historical cost is not avaiiable. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated
fair value on the date donated.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized.

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Depreciation has been provided over estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Infrastructure (roads, bridges) 50 years
Buildings 25-50 years
Distribution systems 10-50 years
Equipment 3-10 years
Furniture and fidures 3-10 years

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

As set forth in the City Charter, the City Councit adopts an annual budget of the General Fund, Proprietary Funds,
and Special Revenue Funds. The annual budget for the General Fund is prepared in accordance with the basis of
accounting utilized by that fund. The budget for the Proprietary Funds is adopted under a basis consistent with
GAAP, except that certain capital expenses and nen-operating income and expense items are not considered. The
City Recorder is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within and among departments; however, any revisions
that alter the total expenditures/expenses must be approved by the City Council.

The amended budgels for the Governmental Funds are represented in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2013

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Bonds Premiums/Discounts/Issuance Costs

In Governmental Fund types, bond discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the current period. Bond
premiums, discounts, and issuance costs for Proprietary Fund types are deferred and amortized over the term of the
bonds using the straight-line method. Bond discounts are offset against the debt to which they are related. lssuance
costs are recorded as deferred charges while bond premiums are recorded as an addition to the face amount of the
bond.

Fund Balance Classification

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications. These classifications
are comprised of a hierarchy which is established primarily on the extent to which the Gity is bound to honor
constraints on specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The
classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either () not in
spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The City has classified cartain
inventories and prepaid items as being nonspendable as these items are not expected to be converted to cash or are
not expected to be converted to cash within the next year.

Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of the resources
either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or {b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
The City has classified certain education monies as being restricted because their use is restricted by State Statute
for education expenditures.

Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen. These amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the Mayor and Board of Aldermen removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of
action (ordinance or resolution) that as employed when the funds were initially committed. This classification also
includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically committed for use in
satisfying those contractual reguirements. The City did not have any committed resources as of June 30, 2013.

Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City's intert to be used for a specific
purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the Mayor and Board or Aldermen
or through the Mayor and Board or Aldermen delegating this responsibility to the City Finance Director through the
budgetary process. The City has classified monies relating to ESP and We Care as being assigned.

Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund and the Sanitation Fund.
The City would typically use Restricted fund balance first, followed by Committed resources, and then Assigned

resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend Unassigned resources first
to deter the use of these other classified funds.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

NOTE 2 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Gity is authorized to invest funds in financial institutions and direct obligations of the Federal Government,
During 2013, the City invested in short-term certificates of deposit, savings accounts and other money markst
accounis.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned
or the City will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. The City's policy
requires that deposits be secured and coliaterized by the institutions at 105 percent of the value of the deposits
placed in the institutions less the amount protected by federal depository. At June 30, 2013, deposits were not
exposed to custodial risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest rate changes. The City's policy
provides that to the extent practicable, investments are matched with anticipated cash flows.

NOTE 3 — RECEIVABLES, UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS, AND DEFERRED REVENUES

Significant business-type receivables include amounts due from customers primarily for utility services. These
receivables are due within thirty days. Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables
for revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities in the current period. Governmental funds

also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.

Customer utility accounts receivable and customer accounts receivable at the recreation center are presented net of
an allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Delinquent taxes receivable have been included in the combined balance sheet with offsetting deferred revenue to
reflect amounts which were not available at June 30, 2013. Amounts, which were available at June 30, 2013, have
been recorded as revenue.

Accounts receivable and the related allowance for doubtiul accounts at June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Allowance for

Fund Type Receivables Doubtful Accounts Net
Governmental Funds § 7177,367.10 3 {55,000.00) $ 7.122,367.10
Proprietary Funds 797.809.37 {22.000.00) 775,809.37
Total $ _7.975176.47 5 {77,000.00) &._.7.898.17647

NOTE 4 - INVENTORIES

Inventory of the Water and Sewer Funds, principally materials, supplies, and replacement parts, is valued at the
lower of cost, first-in, first-out, or market.

Inventory of the School Cafeteria fund consists of food and supplies and is valued at cost and recorded using the
purchase and consumption methods for fund and governmental activities statement presentation, respectively.

Inventory of the General fund, principally materials and gasoline, is valued at cost and recorded as an expenditure at
the time individual inventory items are purchased.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2013

NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental Activities

A summary of Governmental Funds property, plant and equipment as of June 30, 2013 is as follows:

Nondepreciable capital assets:

Land

Construction in Progress

Depreciable capital assets:

Building and improvements

Infrastructure
Equipment
Vehicles

Total capital assets

Accumulated depreciation:
Buiiding and improvemenis

Infrastructure
Equipment
Vehicles

Totai accumulated

depreciation

Capital assets - net

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General Government
Police Department
Fire Department
Highway and Streets
Parks & Recreation
Brug Fund
Sanitation Fund
Schools

Total

21

Balance Adjustments/ Balance
July 1, 2012 Additions Disposals June 30, 2013

4,680,442.51 0.00 % (284,018.93) $ 4,396,423.58
41 865.25 604,121.36 0.00 645,986.61
4722 307.76 604,121.36 (284.018.93) 2.042.410.19

27,472,613.21 0.00 0.00 27,472,613.21
23,415,019.37 187,064.33 0.00 23,602,083.70
2,542 556.73 61,305.57 (7.000.00) 2,598,862.30
2,871.018.79 192,421 21 {194,975.45) 2,868,462.55
56,301,206.10 440,791.11 {201,975.45} 56,540,021.76
61,023,513.86 1.044.912.47 {485,954.38) 61,582,431.95
{9,755,879.38) (817,886.18) 0.00 (10,573,765.56)
{16,951,266.88) {299,978.98) 0.00 (17,251,245.86)
{1,669,258.96) {182,977.48) 7.000.00 {1,845,236.44)
(2.148.917.25) {208.985.87) 172,117.56 (2,185,785.56)
{30,525.322.47) (1.509.828.51) 179.117.56 (31,856,033.42)

$ 32046552
108,727.36
45,053.67
194,788.84
271,491.24
145,685.54
19,030.92
403,585.42

1 28.51



CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS {continued)

Business-type Activities

A summary of Proprietary Fund property, plant and equipment as of June 30, 2013 is as follows:

Balance Adjustments/ Balance
July 1, 2012 Additions Disposals June 30, 2013
Nondepreciable capital assets:
Land & 210,937.04 0.00 $ 0.00 210,837.04
Construction in Progress 38,636.33 242 246.70 (47.529.21) 233.253.82
249 473.37 242 246.70 (47.529.21) 444 190.86
Depreciable capital assets:
Building 407,200.98 0.00 0.00 407,200.98
Equipment 1,523,419.28 14,800.00 (27,850.01) 1,510,369.28
LUility plant 47.215,057.79 125.036.71 0.00 47,340.094.50
49.145,678.06 139.836.71 (27.850.01) 43.257.664.76
Total capital assets 49.395,151.43 382,083.41 (75.379.22) 49.701,855.62
Less accumnulated depreciation;
Building (243,091.28) (10,475.81) 0.00 (253,567.09)
Equipment {1,091,188.68) (62,383.53) 27,850.00 (1,125,722.21)
Utility plant (12.938.193.10) (1,315,312.38) 0.00 (14.253,505.48)
Total accumuiated
depreciation {14,272 .473.06} {1,388,171.72) 27.850.00 (15,632,794.78)
Capital assets - net $ 3512267837 $ (1,006,088.31) & (47.529.29) $..34.069.060.84

During 2013, depreciation in the amount of $1,388,171.72 was charged {c operations.

NOTE & -~ COMPENSATED ABSENCES

City policy provides for the accumutation of unused vacation. Accumulated vacation and sick leave vest with the
employee and may be taken, or paid to the employee upon termination or retirement.

For Governmental Fund accounting and reporting purposes, no amounts accrued at June 30, 2013 are expected to
be liguidated with expendable available financial resources; accordingly, a liability is not recorded in the fund
statements. Compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the governmental activities and proprietary fund

financial statements.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Governmental Activities:
The following Is a summary of changes in long-term debt during the 2013 fiscal year:

Batance Balance
Juiy 1, 2012 Additions Retirements June 30, 2013
Desecription of debt
General Obligation Debt:
l.ocal Government Public
Improvement Bonds-Series Z-1-A,
interest at 2% — 5.375%-General
government portion $ 11,495,000.00 & 0:00 - $(355,000.00) - $11,140,000:00 -
First Vision Bank Note 235,714.29 0.00 (39,285.71) 196,428.58
Coffee County Bank Note 236,340.28 0.00 (39,285.71) 197,054.57

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 2010, interest

at 4.53% — City Portion 10,610,000.00 0.00 {5,000.Q0) 10,605,000.00
Local Government Public

Improvement Bonds Series Z-4-A

PBA Bonds 1,340,000.00 0.00 (100,000.00) 1,240,000.00
Sanitation Equiprment Capital
Outlay Notes, Series 2006 40,000.00 0.00 (25,000.00) 15,000.00
Less loss on refunding (103,527.57) 0.00 7.682.81 (95,844.76)
Subtotal Bonds 23,853,527.00 .00 (555,888.61) 23,297,638.39
Liability For Compensated
Absences
City 1,085,569.09 135,205.62 0.00 1,224,774.71
Schools 490,500.18 63,501.53 0.00 554,001.71
OPEB Obligation 454.000.00 135,000.00 0.00 589,000.00
Total Debt $25883.596.27 §337,707.15  §(555.888.61) § 25.665414.81

General Obligation Debt is secured by the City, which is obligated to levy taxes to the extent necessary to service
ihis debt.
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Business Type Activities:
The following is a summary of changes in Water & Sewer long-term debt during the 2013 fiscal year:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2012 Additions Retirements June 30, 2013

Water and Sewer Fund
Water & Sewer Revenue & Tax Bonds:
Less loss on refunding g (182,421.07) $ 1238449 § 0.00 $§ {170,036.58)
L ocal Government Public
Improvement Bonds:
Series Z-1-A, inlerest at 3-5.375%
Water & Sewer portion 3,730,000.00 0.00 (405,000.00) 3,325,000.00
General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2010, interest
at 4.53% - Water and Sewer

portion 5,585,000.00 0.00 {20,000.00) 5,565,000.00
Series Z-1-B, variable interest-
BRUC portion 2,920,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,920,000.00

Public Building Authority

of Coffee County, TN -

Utility Revenue and Tax Bonds-

Series 2006 — DRUC Portion 7,535,000.00 0.00 {30,000.00) 7,505,000.00
Water & Sewer Revenue

& Tax Refunding Bonds —

Series 2006 720,000.00 0.00 {15,000.00) 705,000.00
Wastewater Treatment Plant

Anticipation Loans 8,449,406.17 0.00 (324,226.08) 8,125,180.08
Tennessee Public Health

State Loan 4,170.05 0.00 0.00 4,170.05

Subtotal Bonds 28,761,155.15 12,384.49 (794,226.08) 27,979,313.56
Liability for Compensated

Absences 237 357.62 20,865.23 0.00 258,222.85

Total Debt $ 28,998512.77 33.249.72 {794,226.08) § 28,237.536.41

Revenues and tax bonds and Tennessee Public Health Loans are primarily obligations payable from Enterprise Fund
revenues, but in the event of a deficiency, the full faith and credit of the City is irrevocably pledged.

Receivable from the Duck River Utility Commission (DRUCY:

The Local Government Public Improvement Bonds-Series Z-1-B-DRUC Portion and Public Building Authority of
Coffee County, TN - Utility Revenue and tax Bonds-Series 2006 - DRUC were used by the Duck River Utility
Commission to construct their facilities and improvements fo utility plant through an agreement with the City of
Tullahoma. As a result, DRUC is to be primarily responsible for the repayment of the loans. The receivable from
BRUC at June 30, 2013, amounted to $10,425,000.00.
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

A summary of annual bond debt service requirements at June 30, 2013 for General Obligations Debt, including

honds and capital outlay notes, is as follows:

Fiscal Year
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

2018-2023

2024-2028

2029-2033

2034-2038
Total

A summary of annual bond debt service requirements at June 30, 2013 for Water and Sewer Fund Debt, including

bonds and loans, is as follows:

Fiscal Year
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

2018-2023

2024-2028

2028-2033

2034-2038
2039
Total

NOTE 8 — INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Individual fund receivables and payables are attributed to charges between funds that are outstanding at
June 30, 2013, and revenues collected by the Water & Sewer Fund to be paid to the Sanitation Fund. interfund

Principal
% 573,671.42
583,571.42
608,571.42
638,571.42
668,571.45
3,440,626.02
4,370,000.00
5,535,000.00
6.975,000.00
$23,393.483.15

Principal
1,087,124.03
1,115,501.67
1,158,218.13
1,191,108.78
1,238,178.96
6,938,433.62
8,259,261.82
3,928,144.41
2,571,473.18

660,905.54
$28,145.350.14

balances are expected to be paid during the following fiscal year.

Fund
Major Funds:
General Fund
General Purpose School Fund
Water & Sewer Fund
Non-major Funds;
Sanitation Fund
Total

Receivables
5 2,285.31
0.00
0.00

84,825.16

B 87.210.47

25

Interest
$ 1,024,868.40
1,005,604.96
885,537.96
863,743.42
8933,225.24
4 239,259.06
3,456,257.00
2,433,165.00
1.071,593.76
$ 16.113.254.80

Interest
996,788.87
963,741.45
928,967.61
891,627.82
844,315.56
3,527,691.49
2,261,226.76
1,060,281.22
479,621.59

— 10751224

$.12,061.774.61

Payables

$ 0.00
2,285.31
84,925.16

— 000
$ 8721047



CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
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NOTE 9 — FUND BALANCES AND NET POSITION

A summary of changes in fund halances follows:

Transfers/
Beginning Other
Fund Balance, Excess/(Deficit) of Fund Balance Ending
as Restated Revenues over Additions/ Fund Balance
July 1, 2012 Expenditures {Deletions) June 30, 2013
General Fund:
Nonspendable 3 55,240.84 3 25,086.58 3 0.00 3 80,327.42
Unassigned 2,879,865.20 4,007.377.35 {3.611,439.34) 3,275,903.21
Total General Fund § ..2.935206.04 $ 4.032,463.93 $(3.611.439.34) §  3.356,230.63
General Purpose School Fund:
Nonspendable 3 132,223.00 % 14,400.00 3 0.00 % 146,623.00
Assigned 64,024.31 8,784.48 0.0 72,808.79
Unassigned 4,483,744.49 (2,513.002.31)} 1.678.467.00 3,649,209.18
Total General Purpose
School Fund 467 1, $ (248081783 1,678,467, $  3,868,640.97
Special Revenue Funds:
Schoal Federal and State
Projects Fund:
Restricted 3 14,705.33 $ {1,375.358) &% 0.00 3 13,329.98
School Capital Projects Fund
Unassigned 4,457.02 {3,980.34) 0.00 476.68
School Cafeteria Fund
Nonspendable 13,249.05 12,267.91 0.00 25,516.96
Unassigned 272,524.78 {63,246.61) 0.00 209,278.17
Recreation Fund
Unassigned (1,800.69) {283,755.55) 302,976.16 17,419.92
Sanitation Fund
Unassigned 114,503.24 (6,369.21) 6.37 108,140.40
Drug Fund
Unassigned 438,475.38 3,047.53 0.00 441,522.91
Tourism Fund
Unassigned 21G,656.45 21,334.76 0.00 231,891.21
Community Policing Fund
Unassigned 26,650.03 a97.57 17,000.00 44 647.60
Fast Track Grant Fund
Unassigned 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
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NOTE 9 — FUND BALANCES AND NET POSITION (continued)

Transfers/
Beginning Other
Fund Balance, Excess/(Deficit) of Fund Balance Ending
as Restated Hevenues aver Additions/ Fund Balance
July 1, 2012 Expenditures {Deletions) June 30, 2013
Debt Service Fund
Unassigned 2,064.035.77 {1.568,343.64) 1.612.989.81 2.108,681.94
Total Special Revenue Funds $ . 3,157.356.36 $.(1.880.402.93)  §.1.932.972.34 2 77
Proprietary Funds:
Water and Sewer Fund $ 18.767,040.23 $ (496.363.62) 5 0.00 $ 19,270,676.61
Total Proprietary Funds $.19,767,040.23 $ (40636362 & 000 $. 19.270,676.61

As of these financial statements, the City has adopted GASB Statement No. 54, which redefined how fund balances
of the governmental funds are presented in the financial statements. Fund balances are now classified as follows:

Nonspendable — Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in spendable form or because they

are legally or cortractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted — Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the City Charter, City Code, state or

federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors,

Committed — Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action by the Mayor

and City Council ordinance or resolution.

Assigned - Amounts that are designated by the Mayor for a specific purpose but are not spendable until a budget

ordinance is passed by the Mayor and City Council.

Unassigned — All amounts not included in other spendable classifications.

As discussed in Note 1, Resiricted funds are used first, followed by Committed resources, and then Assigned
resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend Unassigned resources first

{0 deter the use of these other classified funds.

NOTE 10 - RESTRICTED NET POSITION

The net position for the Drug Fund, School Cafeteria Fund, and certain schoal programs within the General Purpose
School Fund have been restricted as they are only available for use within these two funds. As of June 30, 2013, the

balances are as follows:

Drug Fund % 441,522,891
School Cafeteria Fund $ 234,795.13
General Purpose School Fund
ESP B 63,727.71
We Care 5 9,081.08
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NOTE 11 — DEFICIT FUND BALANCE AND EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF BUDGET

The official Gity budget for June 30, 2013, was prepared for adoption for the General and Special Revenue Funds by
June 27, 2012. The budget was formerly adopted by the City Council after three readings at duly advertised public
meetings. The final reading was passed as amended on August 20, 2013.

The Manchester's actual expenditures exceeded the amount appropriated in the final budget. This practice is
contrary to state statutes, which require all expenditures of the general and special revenue funds be authorized by
the governing body.

For 2013, the following fund/departments over expended budgetary fund balances as follows:

Fund/Department Budaet Actual Overage

Brug Fund $ 512,800.38 % 441,522.91 $ (71,277.47)
General Purpose School Fund $ 3,908,338.80 $ 3,868,640.97 $ (39,697.83)
Recreation Fund $ 44,102.31 3 17,419.92 $ (26,682.39)
Schooi Cafeteria Fund $ 285,773.83 $ 234,795.13 $ (50,978.70)
School Capital Projects Fund $ 0.00 3 3,980.34 $ (3,980.34)

NOTE 12 — PROPERTY TAXES
The City’s property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real and
personal praperty located in the City's legal boundaries. All City taxes on real estate are declared to be a fien an
such realty from January 1 of the year assessments are made.

Assessed values are established by the State of Tennessee at the following rates of assessed market value:

Public Utility Property 55%
Industrial and Commercial Property - Real 40%

- Personal 30%
Farm and Residential Property 25%

Taxes are levied at a rate of $2.2899 per $100 of assessed valuation.
Payments may be made during the period from October 1 through February 28. Current tax coliections of

$4,314,831.14 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, were approximately 94 percent of the tax levy. During March
of each tax year, delinquent taxes are turned over to the county for collection.

NOTE 13 — RETIREMENT PLANS

Tennessee Consolidated Retirement Systern (TCRS)

Plan Description

Employees of the City of Manchester are members of the Political Subdivision Pension Plan (PSPP), an agent
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System
(TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Benefits are determined by a
formula using the member's high five-year average salary and years of service. Members become eligible to retire at
the age of 60 with ten years of service or at any age with 30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is
available to vested members at the age of 55. Disability benefits are available to active members with five years of
service who become disabled and cannct engage in gainful employment. There is no service requirement for
disability that is the result of an accident or injury occurring while the member was in the performance of duty.

28



CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

NOTE 13 — RETIREMENT PLANS {continued)

Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS) (continued)
Plan Description

Members joining the system after July 1, 1979 become vested after ten years of service and members joining prior to
July 1, 1979 were vested after four years of service. Benefit provisions are established in state statute found in Title
8, Chapter 34-37 of the Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA). State statutes are amended by the Tennessee General
Assembly. Political subdivisions such as the City of Manchester participate in the TCRS as individual entities and
are liable for all costs associated with the operation and administration of their plan. Benefit improvements are not
applicable to a political subdivision unless approved by the chief governing body.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the PSPP. That report may be obtained by writing to Tennessee Treasury Depariment, Consolidated
Retirement System, 10" Floor Andrew Jackson Building, Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be accessed at
hitp://www.tn.govitreasury/ters/PS/,

Funding Policy
City of Manchester requires employees to contribute 5.0 percent of earnable compensation.

City of Manchester is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the rate for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2013 was 5.25% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirement of plan members is set by state

statute. The contribution requirement for the City of Manchester is established and may be amended by the TCRS
Board of Trustees.

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ending June 30, 2013, the Gity of Manchester's annual pension cost of $224,346 to TCRS was equal to
City of Manchester's required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the
July 1, 2011 actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age actuarial cost method. Significant actuarial assumptions
used in the valuation include (a) rate of return on investment of present and future assets of 7.5 percent a year
compounded annually, {b) projected 3.0 percent annual rate of inflation, (c) projected salary increases of 4.75
percent (graded) annual rate (no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion attributable to the effects of
inflation on salaries), (d) projected 3.5 percent annual increase in the Social Security wage base, and {e) projected
post retirement increases of 2.5 percent annually. The actuarial value of assets was determined using technigues
that smooth the effect of shori-term volatility in the market value of total investments over a ten-year period. City of
Manchester's unfunded actuarial accrued liability Is being amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis. The
remaining amortization period at July 1, 2011 was 18 years. An actuarial valuation was performed as of
July 1, 2011, which established contribution rates effective July 1, 2012,

Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed QObligation
June 30, 2013 $224,346 100.00% $0.00
June 30, 2012 $266,630 100.00% $0.00
June 30, 2011 $249,346 100.00% $0.00
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NOTE 13 — RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July t, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 87.11 percent funded. The actuarial
accrued [liability for benefits was $1.36 million, and the actuarial value of assets was $1.19 million, resulting in an
unfunded actuarial accrued fiability (UAAL) of $0.18 million. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $3.75 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 4.69 percent,

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RS!) following the notes to the
financial statements, present multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets are
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AALs for the benefits.

{Dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL asa
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Agctuarial Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Plan Assets - Entry Age {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payrcll
Date (a) {b) (b} —(a) (a/b} @ {{b-al/c)
July 1, 2011 $ 1,186 $ 1,362 $ 175 87.11% $3,746 4.69%

Manchester City Schools

The Manchester City Schocls contribute to the State Employees, Teachers and Higher Education Employees
Pension Plan (SETHEEPP), a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and
disability bengfits to plan members and their beneficiaries. Benefits are determined by a formula using the member's
high five-year average salary and years of service. Members become eligible to retire at the age of 60 with five
years of service or at any age with 30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is avaitable to vested members
who are at least 55 years of age or have 25 years of service. Disability benefits are available to active members with
five years of service who become disabled and cannct engage in gainful employment. There is no service
requirement for disability that is the result of an accident or injury occurring while the member was in the
performance of duty. Members joining the plan on or after July 1, 1979 are vested aiter five years of service.
Members joining prior to July 1, 1979 are vested after four years of service. Benefit provisions are established in
state statute found in Title 8, Chapter 34-37 of the Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA}. State Staiutes are amended
by the Tennessee General Assembly. Cost of living adjustments (COLA} are provided to retirees each July based on
the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) during the previous calendar year. No COLA is granted if
the CPI increases less than one-half percent. The annual COLA is capped at three percent.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the SETHEEPP. That report may be aobtained by writing to the Tennessee Treasury Department,
Consolidated Retirement System, 10" Floor Andrew Jackson Building, Nashville, Tennessee 37243-0230 or can be
accessed at www.tn.govitreasuryfters/Schoaols.
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NOTE 13 — RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)

Funding Policy

Most teachers are required by state statute to contribute 5.0% of salary to the plan. The employer confribution rate
for Manchester City Schools is established at an actuarially determined rate. The employer rate for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2013 was 8.88 percent of annual covered payroll. The employer contribution requirement for
Manchester City Schools is established and may be amended by the TGRS Board of Trustees. The employer's
contributians to TCRS for the years ending June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $570,011, $562,994, and $536,735,
respectively, which were equal to the required contributions for each year.

Manchester Public Employee Reiirement System (MPERS)

Any employee participating in the City of Manchester Retirement Plan who was a member of the Plan prior to July 1,
2002, or who was hired between July 1, 2001 and July 1, 2002 and elects to join the Plan at the first available
enrollment, and any employee of the Manchester Gity School Board, shall be permitied to contribute as before, and
the City will contribute to match the employee's one (1%) percent contribution with a seven (7%) percent city
contribution.

Any person, other than employees of the Manchester City School Board, who began employment with the City of
Manchester on or after July 1, 2002, or any current employee who was hired between July 1, 2001 and July 1, 2002
who does not elect 1o join the Plan at the first available enroliment, or any employee not presently in the Retirement
Plan, or who re-joins the Plan after having stopped contributing to it, shall be limited o a City contribution equal to
the employee’s contribution, up to the maximum City contribution set by the fiscal year Budget Ordinance.,

Deferred Compensaticn Plan

Upon employment, empioyees of the City of Manchester, Tennessee are eligible to contribute up to $16,500.00 (as
well as an additional $5,500.00 if over the age of 50) to a 457{b){6) deferred compensation plan. The City does not
match any contributions to this plan,

Other Past Employment Benetit Plan

After 30 years of service, TCRS members are eligible for retirement. [f the retiree is not eligible for Medicare, the
state of Tennessee will pay 45% of the retiree’s single premium payment and the City will cover the remaining 55%
until the retiree meets eligibility requirements. This post employment benefit plan only applies to qualified employees
of the Manchester City Schoaols.

NOTE 14 — POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN

Manchester City Schools participates in the state-administered Teacher Group Insurance Plan for healthcare
benefits. For accounting purposes, the plan is an agent multiple-employer defined beneiit OPEB plan. Benefits are
established and amended by an insurance committee created by Tennessee Code Annotated Section 8-27-302.
Prior to reaching the age of 65, all members have the option of choosing between the standard and partnership
preferred provider organization (PPO) plan for healthcare benefits. Subsequent to age 65, members who are also in
the state's retirement system may participate in a state administered medicare supplement plan that does not include
pharmacy. The plans are reported in the State of Tennessee Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The
CAER is available on the state's website at: hitp://fennessee gov/finance/act/cafr.html.

31



CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

NOTE 14 — POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN (continued)

Funding Policy

The premium requirements of plan members are established and may be amended by the insurance committee.
The plans are self-insured and financed on a pay-as-you-go basis with the risk shared equally among the
participants. Claims liabilities are periodically computed using actuarial and statistical techniques to establish
premium rates. The employers in each plan develop their own contribution policy in terms of subsidizing active
employees or retired employees’ premiums since the committee is not prescriptive on that issue. The state does not
provide a subsidy for local government participants, however, the state does provide a partial subsidy to Local
Education Agency pre-65 teachers and a full subsidy based on years of service for post-65 teachers in the Medicare

Supplement Plan. There is no employer contribution.

Annual OPEB Cost and net OPEB Cbligation

{Dollars in thousands)

ARC

Interest on the NPO
Adjustment to the ARC
Annual OPEB cost:
Amount of Contribution
Increase/Decrease in NPO

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of ysar
Net OPEB obligation - end of year

Year End Plan
06/30/2011 LEA/LocGov Plan
06/30/2012 LEA/LocGov Plan
086/30/2013 LEA/LocGov Plan

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2011, was as follows (dollars in thousands}):

Actuarial valuation date
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuarial value of plan assets

$
8

Annual
OPEB
Cost

115
247
250

Unfunded actuarial accured liability (UAAL)
Actuarial Value of Assets as a % of the AAL
Covered payroll (active plan members)
UAAL as a percentage of covered payrofl

32

$

251
18

{19)

250

(115)

135

454

$

Teacher Group

$
$
8

07/01/2011

589

QFEB
Cost

Contributed

102
100
115

Plan

1,863
0
1,863
0
8,478

21.98%

Obligation
at
Year End

$ 307
$ 454
$ 589
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NOTE 14 — POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN {continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the time of each
valuation and on the pattern of sharing the costs between the employer and plan members to that point. Actuarial
calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the
actuarial value of assets.

In the June 30, 2011, actuarial valuation for the Local Government plan, the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost
method was used and the actuarial assumptions included a 4 percent investment rate of return {net of administrative
expenses) and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 9.25 percent initially. The rate decreased to 8.75 percent in
fiscal year 2013 and then will be reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5 percent by fiscal year 2021. The
annual healthcare premium trend rate for the Medicare Supplement Plan was 6.50 percent initially. The rate reduced
to 6.25 percent in fiscal year 2013 and then will be reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5 percent by fiscal
year 2018. Both rates include a 2.5 percent inflation assumption, which represent projected salary increase. The
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a closed basis over a 30
year period beginning with July 1, 2007.

NOTE 15 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Litigation and Centingency

There were several pending lawsuits in which the City was involved, as well as cerfain un-asserted claims and
assessments, which appear probable of assertion. The City attorney is unable, at this time, to determine the
probable outcome of such litigation; however, City officials do not believe the eventual outcome will materially affect
the financial condition of the City.

Grants

Amounts received or receivable from granior agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally, the Federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, could become a
liability of applicabie funds.

Agreement with Tennessee Valley Authority

The City and four other water and sewer systems in the Upper Duck River area entered into agreement with the
Tennessee Valley Authority whereby the City's water system is obligated to pay monthly to TVA five cents per 1,000
gallons of water sold during the preceding monih.

Contracts
During the year, the Water & Sewer Fund had $233,253.82 in construction in progress from various projects relative
to the water and sewer plant. The Governmental Funds reported $56,086.49 from the Tourism Fund, which started

gonstruction on their downtown renovation project and $589,900.12 from the General Purpose School Fund, which
slarted upgrading their technology infrastructure during the fiscal year,
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NOTE 16 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The City of Manchester is exposed to various risks to general liability and property and casualty losses. The City
deemed it was more economically feasible fo participate in a public entity risk pool as opposed to purchasing
commercial insurance for general liability, property, casualty and workman's compensation coverage. The City
participates in the Tennessee Risk Management Trust (TRMT). The City pays an annual premium to the TRMT for
its general liability and casually insurance coverage.

NOTE 17 — RESTATEMENT

During 2013, certain matters were noted which required restatement of the prior year. The beginning net position of
Governmenial Activities and fund balance of the School Federal and State Projects Fund have been restated to
record a prior period adjustment to correctly report revenues which should have been included in prior years, but
were treated as deferrals instead. Reconciliations of the prior period ending net position and fund balance to the
current year beginning net position and fund balance are as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Net position - beginning of year, as
previously reported $ 15,274,218.11
Restatements, as discussed above 112,931.21
Net position - beginning of year as
restated 5,387,149.32

School Federal
And State

Projects Fund
Fund balance - beginning of year, as

previously reported $ {98,225.88)

Restatements, as discussed above 112,931.21
Fund balance - beginning of year as

restated 3 14,705.33

NOTE 18 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In February 2014, the Coffee County Schools Board of Education sent a letter to the City of Manchester seeking to
negotiate payment of $149,154.00 in mixed drink taxes allegedly owed to the system. This estimate has been based
on taxes from 1980 o June 30, 2013. The state is currently providing guidance to both parties. A liability has not
been booked as this situation remains in negotiation and the final liability is currently indeterminable.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED

June 30, 2013

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR THE CITY OF MANCHESTER — (TCRS)

{Dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

July 1, 2011
July 1, 2009
July 1, 2007

Actuarial
Value of
Plan Assets

(a)

$ 1,186
5 119
5 0

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
{AAL)

- Entry Age
{b)

$ 1,362
$ 253
$ 0

Unfunded

AAL Funded
(UAAL) Ratio
(b) — (=} {a/b)
3 175 87.11%
$ 134 47.14%
& 0 0.00%

Covered
Payroll
)

% 3,746
% 2,898
% 0

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR THE CITY OF MANCHESTER — (OPEB)

(Dollars in thousands)

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

July 1, 2009
July 1, 2010
July 1, 2011

Actuarial
Value of
Plan Assets

&

See Accompanying independent Auditors' Report.

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

- Entry Age
b

$ 1,456
$ 1,000
$ 1,863

36

Unfunded

AAL Funded
(UAAL) Ratio
(b} - (a) {a/b)
% 1,456 0.00%
$ 1,000 0.00%
$ 1,883 0.00%

Covered
Payroll

(=]

$ 8,162
$ 8,306
$ 8,476

UAAL as a

Percentage

of Covered
Payraoll

{{(h-a)/c)

4.69%
4.62%
0.00%

UAALas a

Percentage

of Covered
Payroll

({b-a)/c)

17.83%
12.04%
21.98%
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2013

NON-MAJOR GOVERNNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds;

School Federal and State Project Fund - To account for the various federal and state grant programs administered
by the School Systemn.

School Cafeteria Fund - To account for the cafeteria operation of the City School System.

Schoo! Capital Projects Fund — To account for the financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
fixed assets pertaining to the schools.

Recreation Fund - To account for the various revenues and expenditures of the City's Parks and Recreation
Department.

Sanitation Fund - To account for the receipts from garbage collection fees and expenses related 1o the City's
sanitation department.

Drug Fund - To account for drug fines received and usage of those monies to further drug investigations.
Tourism Fund - To account for the financial activities of the City's tourism program.

Community Policing Fund - To account for funds restricted for various police projects and purposes.
Fast Track Grant Fund — To account for the Fast Track Grant program.

Debt Service Fund:

To account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of interest and principal on long-term general
obligation debt other than payable from the Enterprise Fund.

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
as
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2013

NOTES TO BUDGET

Budagets and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements.

1.

Prior to July 1, the City Finance Director submits to the Mayor and Aldermen a proposed operating budget for
the forthcoming fiscal year commencing July 1.

Public hearings are conducted at City Hall to obtain taxpayer comments.

Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through action by the Mayor and Aldermen. For budgetary
control purposes, control is established at the department level. In no event shall the total appropriations for
any fund included in the budget exceed the estimated revenues and unappropriated fund balance of that fund.

The City Finance Director is authorized to transfer appropriations within depariments of a fund. Approval of
the Mayor and Aldermen is required to amend departmental and/or total appropriations of any fund. All
unexpected appropriations lapse into the fund balance of the related fund at the end of the fiscal year.

Budgets for governmental fund types (General Fund and Special Revenue Funds) are adopted on a basis
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Budget amounts are as originally adopted
and as amended by the Board,

See Accompanying (ndependent Auditors’ Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

SCHOOL FEDERAL AND STATE PROJECTS FUND

For the Year Ended Junse 30, 2013

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Currant:

Education:

Program costs:
Teachers
Educational assistance
Cther salaries
Benefits
Instructional supplies and materials
In-service and staff development
Capital outlay

Total Expenditures
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other Sources of Resources:
Transfers

Total Other {(Uses) of Resources

Extess (deficiency) of revenues aver
expenditures and other saurces {uses)

Fund Balance, beginning of year, as previously reported
Restatemant
Fund Balance, beginning of year, as restated

Fund Balance, End of Year

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actuai Positive

QOriginal Arnended Firal Amounts (Negativa}
1,307,795.38 5 1,307,79538 $  1,28140560 5 112762803 & {153,777.66)
1,307,795.38 1.307,795.38 1,281,405.68 1,127,628.03 (153,777.686)
112,048.00 112,048.00 112,048.00 112,048.00 0.600
336,957.00 336,957.00 268,827.00 266,723.83 2,203.07
141,543.00 141,543,00 178,148.00 162,952,19 16,195.81
192,681.00 182,601.00 211,730.81 200,888.67 10,842.14
3B2,207.38 382,207.38 380,23B.17 226,5608.76 133,668.41
85,478.00 85,479,00 110,709.28 158,324.83 (47,615,55
8,000.00 9,000.00 8,000.00 1,497.00 7,503.00
1,259 925 38 1,259,925,38 1,250,801,26 1,129,003.38 i21,797.88
47,870.00 47,870.00 30,604.43 (1,375.35) (31,875.78'
(47,870.00} {47,870,00) {47,870.00) Q.00 47,870.00
(47,870.00) (47,870.00) (47,870.00) 0.00 47,870.00
0.00 0.00 (17,265.57) {1,375.35) 15,890.22
{98,225.88) (98,225.88) (98,225,868} (98,225.88) 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 112,931.21 112,831.21
(98,225 88) {08,225.88) {08,225.88) 14,705.33 112,931.21
(58,225.88) & {08,225.86) & {115,481.45) § 13,320.88 & 1268,821.43
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
RECREATION FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amouris Actual Positive
Qriginal Amended Final Amounis {Negative)
Revenues:
tntergovernmental
Room accupancy tax $ 14500000 § 145,000.00 § 132,754,000 & 160,284.00 § 27,540.00
Grants 10,000.00 94,134.00 94,134.00 94,129.63 (4.37)
Charges for service!
Membership fees and dues 828,000.00 825,000.00 8933,688.00 776,013.08 (57,674,092}
Concessions 200,000,00 200,000.00 168,720.00 186,721.48 1.48
Activity fees and charges 167,600.00 178,600.00 184,096.00 184,096.31 0.31
Miscellanecus 8,000.00 13,512.00 37.568.00 37,570.36 1.36
Total Aevenues 1,358,600.00 1,4681,246.00 1,448,961.00 1,418,824.86 {30,136.14)
Expenditures:
Current:
Salaries and employee benefits 925,015.00 931,535,00 917,285.00 915,812.04 382.98
Caontract services 396,500.00 401,500.00 388,700,400 388,B836.00 (138.00)
Supplies 113,000.00 121,349.00 113,825.60 112,473.02 1,351.68
Other 222,600.00 248,681.00 267,710.00 250,229.78 17,480.22
Capital outlay 28,248.00 18,150.00 19,050.00 33,128.57 {14,072.57)
Total Expenditures 1,685,364.00 1,722,215.00 1,707,580.00 1,702,580.41 4,898.59
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (325,764.00) (260,969.00) (258,619.00) (283,755,55) {25,136.55)
Cther Sources of Resources:
Transfer to Debt Service Fund (95,478.00) (95,478,00) {85,476.00) (97,023.92) (1,545.92)
Operating transfers from General Fund 431,545.00 366,750.00 400,000.00 400,000.08B 0.08
Total Other Sources {Uses) of Rasources 336,067.00 271,272.00 304,522.00 302,978,116 {1,545.84)
Exeess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses) 10,303.00 10,303.00 45,803.00 19,220.61 (26,682.35}
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year {1,600.69) {1,800.69) (1,B00.69) {1,800.69) 0.00
Fund Balance, End of Year 5 B,502.31 5560231 5 4410231 % 1741992 § {26,682.38)

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

SANITATION FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Pasitive
Original Amended Final Amounts {Negative}
Revenues:
Charges for setvices:
Garbage fee $ 93220000 § 036,100.00 5 947,874.00 & 056,547.12 § 8,673,12
Total Revenues 932,200,00 036,100.00 947,874.00 956,547.12 B,673.12
Expenditures:
Current:
Salaries and empioyee banefits 318,677.00 320,177.00 297,717.00 2487,589.54 117.48
Waste disposal charges 528,414.00 520,414.00 577,664.00 577.418,10 245.90
Other current aperating 83,109.00 B6,508.00 89,249.00 87,696.68 1,350.31
Total Expenditures 932,200.00 935,100,00 964,630.00 962,816,33 1.713.67
Excess (deficiency) of ravenuas over expendituras 0.00 0.00 (16,756.00) {6,368.21) 10,386.79
Cther Financing Sources {Uses):
Transfer to Debt Service Fund (26,856.00) {25,856.00) {26,858.00) (26,849.63) 6.37
Operating transfers from General Fund 26,856.00 26,856.00 26,856.00 26,856.00 0.00
Total Other Financing Scurces 0.00 0.00 0,00 6.37 8.37
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other financing uses 0.0 0.00 {16,758.00) (6,262.84) 10,393.16
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 114,503.24 114,503.24 114,503.24 114,503.24 0.00
Fund Balance, End of Year 5 114,503.24 § 114,503.24 & 9774724 § 106,140.40 § 10,393.16

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Repori.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

DRUG FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Revenues:
Miscellaneous:
Program revenus

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Genera) expenditures:
Drug related
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

See Accompanying independent Auditors' Report.

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounis Actual Positive
Original Amended Final Amounts {Negative}

5 150,700.030 & 177,603.00 § 168,725.00 21043816 § 41,714.18
150,700.00 177.603.00 168,725.00 210,439.16 41,714.18
82,500.00 78,400,00 56,175.00 B88,390.71 {22,215.71)
31,700.00 1,700.00 28,225.00 119,000.92 {90,775.92)
114,200.00 110,100.00 94,400.00 207,381.63 {112,981.639)
36,500.00 67,503.00 74,325.00 3,047.53 (71,277.47)
438,475.38 438,475.38 438,475.28 438,475.38 0.ac

] 474,975.28 5 505,97B.38 & 512,800,328 441,522.81 5 {71,277.47)
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

TOURISM FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance with

Fina} Budget
Budgsted Amounts Actual Paositive
Qriginal Amended Final Amounts {Negaiive)
Revenues:
Taxes:
Motel tax 3 75,000.00 § 7500000 B68377.00 & 80,147.02 § 13,770.02
Grant revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,539.49 1.538.49
Total Revenues 75,000.00 75,000.00 66,377.00 81,686.51 15,309.51
Expenditures:
Current:
Fragrarn related costs 163,010.00 163,010.C0 60,413.00 60,351.75 51,25
Total Expenditures 163.010.00 163,010.00 60,413.00 60,351.75 81.25
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (88,010.00) (86,010.00) 5,964,00 21,334.76 15,370.76
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 210,556,45 210,556.45 210,556.45 210,586.45 0.00
Fund Balance, End of Year 3 122,546.45 § 12254645 § 216,52045 8 231,891.2t 3% 15,370.78

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
COMMUNITY POLICING FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Amended Finat Amounts {Negsative)
Revenues:
Miscellaneous ] 44,800.00 & 44,800.00 & 53,877.00 & 35877.258 % {16,993.75}
Total Aevenues 44,800.00 44,800.00 53,877.00 35,877.25 [16,998.75)
Expenditures:
Current:
General expendituras:
Program refated expenditures 44,800.00 44,600.00 35,006.00 35,875.68 125.32
Total Expenditures 44,800.00 44,800.00 36,005.00 35,879.68 125,32
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from General Fund 4.00 .00 0.0¢ 17,000.00 17,000.00
Total Other Financing Sources 0.00 0.00 0.0c 17.000.00 17,000.00
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other financing uses 0.00 0.00 17,872.0C 17,887.57 125,57
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 26,650.03 26,850.03 26,650.03 26,650.03 0.00
Funtl Balance, End of Year 3 26,650.03 5 26,650.03 4462203 § 44,647.60 § 125.57

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report,
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amaunts Actual Positive
Qriginal Amanded Final Amounis {Negative)
Revenues:
Miscellaneous $ 46,20000 $ 46,200.00 § 47,150.00 47,146.17  $ (3.83)
Total Revenues 46,200,400 46,200.00 47,150.00 A7, 14617 (3.83)
Expendiiures:
Current:
General expenditures:
Program related expenditures 1,614,448.00 1,614,448.00 1.615,497.00 1,815,488.81 7.19
Tatal Expenditures 1,614,448.00 1,614,448.00 1,615,4587,00 1,615,489,81 7.19
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Transfers fram ather funds 1,568,248.00 1,568,245.00 1,568,248.00 1,612,989.81 44,740,81
Total Other Financing Scurces 1,568,249.00 1,568,248.00 1,568,248.00 1,612,988.81 44.740.81
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other financing uses .00 0.00 {98.00) 44,646,17 44,744.17
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 2,064.035.77 2,064,035.77 2,064,035.77 2.064,045.77 0,00
Fund Balance, End of Year § 2,06403577 & 208403577 & 2063,.837.77 2,108,681.84 § 44,744.17

See Accompanying Independent Auditers' Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2013

SCHEDULE OF TRANSFERS

Transfer from General Fund to Sanitation Fund

Transfer from General Fund to Recreation Fund

Transfer from General Fund to General Purpase School Fund
Transfer from General Fund to Debt Service Fund

Transfer from General Fund to Community Policing Fund
Transfer from Recreation Fund to Debt Service Fund
Transfer from Sanitation Fund to Debt Service Fund

Total Transfers

See Accormpanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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$ 26,856.00
400,000.08
1,678,467.00
1,489,116.26
17,000.00
§7,023.92
26,848.63

$ 3.735312.89
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN PROPERTY TAXES RECEIVABLE*

Tax

Year
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004

2003 and thereafter
Total

*Taxes become delinguent in March of the year following the tax year of levy. Delinquent taxes are
turned over to the County Clerk and Master for collection proceedings.

SCHEDULE OF TAX RATES AND ASSESSMENTS

Adjustments

Year
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004

Rate
2.2099
2.2999
2.2999
2.2999

2.42

2.42

2.42

2.62

277

2.77

Valuations

192,531,402
180,854,294
180,664,264
191,648,681
178,974,121
170,798,164
166,346,338
158,593,260
133,848,245
128,070,916

Assessment

4,428,030.27
4,391,758.88
4,385,088.35
4,407,749.61
4,331,182.14
4,133,323.84
4,025,589.85
4,181,351.68
3,707,601.39
3,547,569.52

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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Balance and Balance
July 1, 2012 Levy Collections June 30, 2013

0.00 4,581,605.98 $ (4,318,817.89) 262,788.09
313,007.70 0.00 (217.358.95) 95,648.75
80,068.54 0.C0 (45,980.70) 34,087.84
43,413.28 0.00 {(21,904.00) 21,509.28
18,935.03 0.00 (6,058.63) 12,876.40
6,515.28 0.00 (947.44) 5,567.84
7,285.78 0.00 (1,404.33) 5,881.45
80212 0.00 23.68 825.80
1,062.82 0.00 (541.70) 521.12
3,570.71 0.00 (606.91) 2,963.80
474,661.26 4,581,605.98 3 {(4,613,596.87) 442,670.37
Add: 2013 Tax Levy 4,616,283.49
5,058,953.86




CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2013

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE IN FORCE

Insurer Risk Covered

Property coverage
Builders and perscnal property — per schedule
Contractors equipment ($1,000 deductible)
Equipment media/Sofiware (5250 deductible)
Automatic coverage
Extra expense — per occurrence
Valuable papers and records — per occurrence
Flood and surface water — poal aggregate ($1,000 deductible)
Earthquake — pool aggregate ($1,000 deductible)
Property in transit
Fine aris
New construction — Builders' risk
Poliution clean-up and removal

Crime coverage
Fidelity — each loss

Loss inside/loss oufside - each loss
Money orders and counterfeit — each loss
Depositors forgery — each loss
BPeductible

Worker's compensation and employer's liability
Bodily injury by accident — each accident

Bodily injury by disease — policy limit
Bodily injury by disease — each employee

Public official errors and omissions
Limit per occurrence {52,500 deductible)

Employee bensfits liability
Limit — each claim
Per member annual aggregate

General liabifity coverage
Bodily injury and property damage — general aggregate
Bodily injury and property damage — each occurrence
Products/Completed operations aggregate
Personal and advertising injury — no aggregate
Damage to premises rented to you
Medical expense
Law enforcement liability — each occurrence ($2,500 deductible)

Automobile liability coverage
Badily injury/Property damage — each occurrence
Hired/Non-awned
Medical payment — (35,000 per person)
Comprehensive and collision deductible

(continued)
57

Amount of
Coverage

Blanket
$ 500,000
$ 1,000,000

Various
$ 5,000,000
$ 1,000,000
$ 25,000,000
% 25,000,000
100,000
$ 500,000
3 500,000
$ 25,000

&%

150,000
150,000
150,000
150,000

500

& £H 8 &

1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

& 7 B

$ 1,000,000

1,000,000
1,000,000

& &

No aggregate limit

$ 1,000,000

No aggregate limit

$ 1,000,000
Policy limit

Legal liability only

$ 1,000,000

$ 1,000,000
$ 1,000,000
5 100,000
3 1,000
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Bran, RuotoN & KeLLEy, PLLC

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND CN COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Tao the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Manchester, Tennessee

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Manchester, Tennessee, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of
Manchester, Tennessee's basic financial staternents and have issued our report thereon dated March 28, 2014. Cur
report was adverse due 1o a fundamental lack of internal control over capital assets, particularly in relation to the
recording of assets acquired as donations from the United States Department of Defense surplus pregrams. In
addition, we found unrecorded bank accounts held by the police and fire departments, the majority of activity in those
funds being undocumented. We also found evidence that certain fundraisers were held in the City's name, the
proceeds of which were not able to be identified in any deposits recorded in the City accounts. These were also
issues during a portion of June 30, 2013. In addition, inventory listings were found to not be accurately stated during
the current fiscal year,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Manchester, Tennessee’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriaie in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
exprassing an apinion on the effectiveness of Gity of Manchester, Tennessee's internal centrol. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Manchester, Tennessee's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in infernal confrof exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses [12-01, 12-02, and 12-03].

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the
deficiencies described in the accompany schedule of findings and questioned costs to be significant deficiencies
[06-03 and 13-01].

300 South Jellesson Sivect, Winchester, TN 37308 o 931.967.0011 o Fax 9319674781
wuwirkepa.com s inlo@@hrkepa.com

Members of Aniericm Institiie of Certilicd Public Accountants, Tennessee Society ol CPA's, and Association of Government Accowmants



Compliance and Other Mattars

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Manchester, Tennessee’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items [06-01,
11-02, and 13-02].

City of Manchester, Tennesses’s Responses to Findings

City of Manchester, Tennessee's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Manchester, Tennessee's responses were not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compiiance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.
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Bean, Rhoton & Kelley, PLLC
March 28, 2014
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Bean, RuotoN & KerLiey, PLLC

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Manchester, Tennessee

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Gity of Manchester, Tennessee’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the OMEB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of City of
Manchester, Tennessee's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. City of Manchesier,
Tennessee's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is respansible for compliance with the reguirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Aesponsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Manchester, Tennessee’s major federal
programs based an our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audifs of Siates, Local Governrnents, and Non-Frofit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
City of Manchester, Tennessee's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Manchester, Tennessee’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Manchester, Tennessee, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2013.

Other Matiers

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed no instances of noncompliance which are required to be reported in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of Manchester, Tennessee, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered City of Manchester, Tennessee's internal controt over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program fo determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each
major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular
A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal contral over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Manchester, Tennessee's internal control
over compliance.

A deffciency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness
in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified,

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Pl S @bm. -

Bean, Rhoton & Kelley, PLLC
Winchester, TN
March 28, 2014
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)
June 30, 2013

(11-01)

(11-02)

(11-03)

(12-01)

Fund Deficit
As of June 30, 2013, there is a fund deficit in the Recreation Fund and School Federal Project Fund,

Disposition:
As of June 30, 2013, this problem no longer exists.

Violation of the Three Day Banking Law

Deposits are not always being made within three days of receipt. This includes not only regular deposits
related to the normal course of City operations, but also cash seized during arrests.

Recommendation:

All collections of cash must be deposited to an official bank within three days of collection. One purpase of
this rule is to minimize losses from theft, resulting from break-ins or misplaced cash. Cash seized should be
deposited at the bank within three days of seizure, rather than when awarded by the court, unless specifically
instructed by the court.

City's Comment:

The City is aware that all collections of cash must be deposited to an official bank within three banking days of
collection. The City has strengthened its internal controls to assure that all monies are being properly
deposited according to State law. In the past, seized cash was being held until it was awarded by the court.
That policy has been changed so that seized cash is being deposited immediately upon seizure.

Disposition:
As of June 30, 2013, this problem still exists.

Donations
Supporting documentation was not found for some allocations made to non-profit entities.

Disposition:
As of June 30, 2013, this problem no longer exists.

Lack of Control over Assets Received from the Department of Defense Surplus Program

in 2012, audit testing and inquiries in relation to contral over fixed assets revealed a fundamental lack of
control over fixed assets, in particular in relation to the acquisition, use and disposal of assets and supplies
obtained through the Department of Defense Law Enforcement Support Office (LESQ) surplus program.
While we were abie to physically observe and trace some of the assets received, we were unable to
completely reconcile assels received as per confirmations with the Department of Defense to the asset
activity recorded on the City's fixes asset listing and other financial information. Estimated values obtained
from the Department of Defense total in excess of $600,000 for the assets and supplies the City received
during the year ended June 30, 2012. This situation was also present at the beginning of the current fiscal
year.

Recommendation:

The City should prepare an inventory accounting for all assets held by the City. Any material differences
between the current listing and the actual inventory should be reconciled to available receipt and disposal
records. The City should also review the internal control system regarding fixed assets, identifying
deficiencies and making changes to the policies as deemed necessary.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)
June 30, 2013

(12-03)

(12-04)

Fundraising Activities

During our audit, we found evidence of certain fundraisers held in the name of the City of Manchester. These
fundraisers included seasonal cruise-in's, department calendar sales, a police golf tournament, and charity
fundraising for certain individuals. No reconciliations or other documentation were available to determine
amounts collected or disbursed for these events. No income was found deposited in the City’s financial
records, which could be attributed to these events. There were certain fundraising related expenditures found
which were paid out of City funds, primarily from the Community Policing Fund. These expenditures included
items such as televisions, admission tickets, drinks, and various car-cleaning supplies.

In addition, promotional flyers acquired during our audit indicated that some of the fundraisers were held to
raise monies for specific activities, such as toys for needy chiidren. Because of the lack of supporiing
documentation, it was undeterminable as to whether funds were spent in the manner in which donors and
participants were told.

Also, in our review of promotional flyers, we observed the advertisement of "50/50” drawings. Any game of
chance, including, but not limited to raffles, is illegal in the State of Tennessee unless prior approval is
received in advance through the Tennessee Division of Charitable Solicitations.

Recommendation:

Any activities hosted or conducted in the name of the City of Manchester must follow all compliance and
internal control procedures as set forth by policies of the City of Manchester and the State of Tennessee.
Section 6-56-112, Tennessee Code Annctated, states, "All expenditures of money made by a municipality
must be made for a lawful municipal purpose.” It is the responsibility of the Mayor and Board of Alderman to
ensure that city staff uses taxpayer funds prudently and sensibly. Should funds be raised for a particutar
cause or event, all monies should be tfracked to ensure that any donations or monies raised were
appropriately used as intended. All monies should be deposited intact inte City funds. At no time should the
City engage or promote illegal activities.

City's Comment:
We concur with the finding and are currently reviewing procedures to ensure that this issue is corrected.

Disposition
As of June 30, 2013, this problem still exists.

Excess Food Purchases

During our audit, testing revealed food purchases in excess of $10,000 paid for from the Community Policing
Fund for food apparently purchased for employee meals, the purpose of which was not associated with a
particular necessity or event. Section 6-56-112, Tennessee Code Annotated, states, "All expenditures of
money made by a municipality must be made for a lawful municipal purpose.” [t is the responsibility of the
Mayor and Board of Alderman to ensure that City staff uses taxpayer funds prudently and sensibly. |t is
difficult to identify a benefit to the City from paying for regular meals for employees.

Disposition
As of June 30, 2013, this problem no lenger exists.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)
June 30, 2013

(13-01) Inventory
City officials did not ensure that complete inventory records of high-risk, moveable property were maintained.

Recommendation:

The Internal Control and Compliance Manual for Tennessee Municipaliies, page 72, states: "Municipal
officials should require that a record of moveable, high-risk, sensitive property ... be established and
maintained. An annual physical inventory should be performed and documented in the municipality's records,
All such items should be tagged or marked to identify them as municipal properly immediately following the
purchase of such items.”

City’s Comment;
A thorough review has been done and has been corrected in the current fiscal year.

{13-02) Net operating loss
The Water and Sewer Fund suffered a net operating loss of $32,812.73 in the prior fiscal year.
Recommendation:
Section 7-35-414 of the Tennessee Code Annotaied requires that all utility systems prescribe rates sufficient
to pay all expenses of operations. Care should be taken to ensure the Water and Sewer Fund operates at a

break-even point in the fuiure,

City's Comment:
The City will strive to eliminate this problem in the coming year,
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